



**Bylaws of
Kearney Soccer League DBA Kearney Soccer Club**

BYLAWS OF KEARNEY SOCCER LEAGUE, A NOT-FOR-PROFIT NEBRASKA CORPORATION

ARTICLE I - NAME

The name of the corporation shall be Kearney Soccer League, DBA Kearney Soccer Club.

ARTICLE II - MEMBERSHIP

Membership in this corporation shall be as outlined under Article IV of the Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE III - MEETINGS

Section 1: Annual Meeting - The Annual membership meeting of this corporation shall be held in January each year and at such time and location as determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 2: Notice - The Secretary shall provide notice to every member in good standing by providing the time and place of such annual meeting.

Section 3: Regular meetings - Regular corporation meetings shall be held at the Harmon Park Activity Center on the first Wednesday of each month, however; the board of directors may agree to hold such meetings at alternate locations and dates.

Section 4: Quorum - The presence of not less than 51% of the directors shall constitute a quorum and shall be necessary to conduct the business of this corporation; but a lesser number may adjourn the meeting for a period of not more than 2 weeks from the date scheduled by these Bylaws and the secretary shall cause a notice of this scheduled meeting to be sent to all those members who were not present at the meeting originally called.

Section 5: Special meetings - A special meeting of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the President, and in the President's absence by the Secretary, upon application, in writing, by at least four (4) members of the Board of Directors or when deemed for the best interest of the corporation. Notices of such meeting shall be posted at least five (5) days before the scheduled date set for such special meeting. Such notice shall state the reasons that such meeting has been called, the business to be transacted at such meeting and by whom it was called. The members of the Board of Directors may waive such notice or such notice may be waived by the attendance of the member's attending meeting, provided, however; a quorum is present at said meeting.

No other business but that specified in the notice may be transacted at such special meeting without the unanimous consent of all present at such meeting.

Section 6: Voting - At all meetings, except for the election of officers and directors, all votes shall be by voice. For election of officers, ballots shall be provided and there shall not appear any place on such ballot that might tend to indicate the person who cast such ballot.

Section 7: Order of Business - The order of business at the annual meeting of the members of the corporation and, as far as possible, at any and all other meetings thereof, shall be conducted as follows:

1. Roll Call.
2. Approval of Minutes of the preceding meeting.
3. Reports of Officers.
4. Reports of Committees.
5. Reports of Coordinators
6. Old and Unfinished Business.
7. New Business.
8. Adjournment.

ARTICLE IV - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1: Management - The business of this corporation shall be managed by a Board of Directors consisting of the four (4) officers of the corporation and seven (7) members-at-large for a total of eleven (11) members.

Section 2: Election - The directors to be chosen for the ensuing year shall be elected at the Annual Meeting of this corporation and they shall serve for a term of three (3) years. Board members may be elected to a maximum of two (2) successive terms for a maximum of six (6) years. A member may be re-elected to the board after a one (1) year absence.

Section 3: Duties - The Board of Directors shall manage, direct, and supervise all the affairs of the corporation and provide such rules and regulations as may from time to time be deemed requisite, not in conflict with the Bylaws of the corporation.

Section 4: Vacancies - on the Board of Directors shall be filled by a vote of the majority of the remaining members of the Board of Directors for the balance of the year.

Section 5: Removal - A director may be removed when sufficient cause exists for such removal. The Board of Directors may entertain charges against any director. A director may be represented by counsel upon any removal hearing. Members of the Board of Directors are

required to attend 75% of monthly meetings or may be removed from the board with a two-thirds vote from the remaining Board of Directors.

ARTICLE V - OFFICERS

Section 1: Officers - The officers of the corporation shall be the President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer. The President and the Secretary of the corporation shall act in their official capacity at all meetings of the members of the corporation. By virtue of their office, officers shall be members of the Board of Directors.

No officer shall for reason of their office be entitled to receive any salary or compensation, but nothing herein shall be construed to prevent an officer or director for receiving any compensation from the corporation for duties other than as a director or officer.

Section 2: Election of Officers - Officers shall be elected at the Annual Meeting.

Section 3: President - The President shall preside at all meetings of the corporation; shall sign all vouchers, certificates, contracts, and other documents and instruments of the corporation; shall make reports to the Board of Directors and members; and shall perform all such duties as are incident to the President's office or are properly required of the Board of Directors. The President shall serve a one (1) year term. If willing and re-elected, may serve additional years.

Section 4: Vice President - The Vice President of the corporation shall perform and exercise the duties and functions of the President in the President's absence or disability and perform such duties as are incident to the office or properly required by the Board of Directors. The Vice President shall become President after completion of the President's term.

Section 5: Secretary - The Secretary of the corporation shall have charge of all records, documents, and papers belonging to the corporation. The Secretary shall issue notices for all meetings of the corporation and of the Board of Directors; shall record and keep the minutes of the same; shall sign with the President, such documents and instruments as shall require such signature; and shall make such reports and perform such duties as are incident to the Secretary's office or properly required by the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall serve a two (2) year term and may be re-elected to serve a second two (2) year term.

Section 6: Treasurer - The Treasurer shall have the care and custody of all monies belonging to the corporation and shall be solely responsible for such monies and/or securities of the corporation. The Treasurer shall ensure that all monies are deposited into accounts as

designated by the Board of Directors; together with one (1) other officer, Club Administrator or Director of Coaching shall sign all checks or drafts of the corporation; shall ensure that no special fund is set aside that makes it unnecessary for checks to be issued for payment of obligations of the corporation; shall present as required by the Board of Directors a written report of the finances of the corporation; such report shall be physically affixed to the minutes of the Board of Directors of such meeting, and shall exercise all duties incident to the office of Treasurer. The Treasurer shall serve a two (2) year term and may be re-elected to serve a second two (2) year term.

ARTICLE VI - FUNDS

All funds of the corporation shall be kept in a bank in Buffalo County, State of Nebraska, and shall be paid out as authorized by the Board of Directors of the corporation by the Treasurer of the corporation.

ARTICLE VII – GRIEVANCES

Any person having a grievance against the corporation shall present the complaint, in writing, to the Board of Directors of the corporation.

ARTICLE VIII - COMMITTEES

All committees of this corporation shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX - AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, repealed, or added to by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members present at the Annual Meeting.

The undersigned President of the Kearney Soccer League DBA Kearney Soccer Club, Inc. hereby certifies that the foregoing Bylaws were duly adopted and approved by the Board of Directors for the corporation on the 18 th day of January, 2017, all pursuant to the Articles of Incorporation and the general laws of the State of Nebraska relating to nonprofit corporations.



President

ATTEST:

 Dave Weiler
Secretary